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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,
Case No. 3:20-cv-01440-CSH
V.

REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC., ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O’NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER,

Defendants.

ASSENTED-TO MOTION FOR
APPROVAL OF SETTLEMENTS AND ENTRY OF FINAL JUDGMENTS

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) with the assent of
Defendants Revolution Lighting Technologies, Inc., Robert LaPenta, James DePalma, Daniel
O’Neal, and Allen Garner, moves that the Court enter the attached proposed Final Judgments as
to each respective Defendant. The Commission and Defendants have agreed to all terms in the
respective Final Judgments. In support of this motion, attached hereto are the Consents signed
by each Defendant and their counsel, memorializing their agreement to the terms of their
respective Final Judgments.

The Commission respectfully requests that the Court enter the attached proposed Final

Judgments.
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DATED: September 24, 2020

Respectfully submitted,

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
By its attorneys,

/s/ Marc Jones

Marc J. Jones (Mass. Bar No. 645910)
Senior Trial Counsel

Peter Bryan Moores (Mass. Bar No. 658033)
Senior Enforcement Counsel

Michele T. Perillo (Mass. Bar No. 629343)
Assistant Director

Martin F. Healey (Mass. Bar No. 227550)
Regional Trial Counsel

Attorneys for Plamtiff

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
33 Arch Street, 24th Floor

Boston, MA 02110

(617) 573-8947 (Jones direct)

jonesmarc(@sec.gov (Jones email)

Local Counsel:

John B. Hughes (Fed. Bar No. CT 05289)
Assistant United States Attorney

Chief, Civil Division

United States Attorney’s Office
Connecticut Financial Center

157 Church Street, 23rd Floor

New Haven, CT 06510

(203) 821-3700

(203) 773-5373 (fax)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,
V.
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC, ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O°NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER.

Defendants.

Case No. 3:28-cv-81448-CSH

CONSENT OF DEFENDANT
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

1. Defendant Revoiution Lighting Technologies, Inc. (“Defendant”) waives service

of a summons and the complaint in this action, enters a general appearance, and admits the

Court’s jurisdiction over Defendant and over the subject matter of this action.

2. Without admitting or denying the allegations of the complaint (except as provided

herein in paragraph 11 and exceptas to personal and subject matter jurisdiction, which

Defendant admits), Befendant hereby consents to the entry of the final Judgment in the form

attached hereto (the “Final Judgment™) and incorporated by reference herein, which, among other

things:

(a) permanently restrains and enjoins Defendant frem violations of Section

17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”™), Sections 10(b),

13(a), 13(b)(2)(A), and 13(b)(2}B) of the Securities Exchange Actof

1934 (“Exchange Act”), and Rules 10b-5, 12b-28, 13a-i, 13a-11, and 13a-

13 thereunder;
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(b)  orders Defendant to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $1,250,000 under
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the
Exchange Act.

3. Defendant agrees that it shall not seck or accept, directly or indirectly,
reimbursement or indemnification from any source, including but not limited to payment made
pursuant to any insurance policy, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that Defendant pays
pursuant to the Final Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof
are added to a distribution fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investors. Defendant further
agrees that it shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with regard to any
federal, state, or local tax for any penalty amounts that Defendant pays pursuant to the Final
Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof are added to a
distribution fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investors.

4, Defendant waives the entry of findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to
Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

5. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury trial and to appeal from the entry of
the Final Judgment.

6. Defendant enters into this Consent voluntarily and represents that no threats,
offers, promises, or inducements of any kind have been made by the Commission or any
member, officer, employee, agent, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to
enter into this Consent.

7. Defendant agrees that this Consent shall be incorporated into the Final Judgment
with the same force and effectas if’ fully sct forth therein.

8. Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judgment on the ground,
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if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and
hereby waives any objection based thereon.

9. Defendant waives service of the Final Judgment and agrees that ‘entry of the Final
Judgment by the Court and filing with the Clerk of the Court will constitute notice to Defendant
of its terms and conditions. Defendant further agrees to provide counsel for the Commission,
within thiety days after the Final Judgment is filed with the Clerk of the Court, with anaffidavit
or declaration stating that Defendant has received and read a copy of the Final Judgment.

10. Consistent with 17 C.F.R. 202.5(f), this Consent resolves only the claims asserted
against Defendant in this civil proceeding. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or
representation has been made by the Coﬁxmisskm or any member, officer, employee, agent, or
representative of the Commission with regard to any criminal liability that may have arisen or
may arise from the facts underlying this action or immunity from any such criminal liability.
Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy based upon the settlement of this proceeding,
including the imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Defendant further acknowledges
that the Court’s entry of a permanent injunction may have collateral consequences under federal
or state !m)v and the rules and regulations of self-regulatory organizations, licensing boards, and
other regulatory organizations. Such collateral consequences include, but are not limited to, a
statutory disqualification with respect to membership or participation in, or association with a
member of, a self-regulatory organization. This statutory disqualification has consequences that
are scparate from any sanction imposed in an administrative proceeding. In addition, in any
disciplinary proceeding before the Commission based on the entry of the injunction in this
action, Defendant understands that it shall not be permitted to contest the factual allegations of

the complaint in this action.
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11.  Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the terms of 17 C.F.R.
§ 202.5(e), which provides in part that it is the Commission’s policy “not to permit a defendant
or respondent to consent to a judgment or order that imposes a sanction while denying the
allegations in the complaint or order for proceedings,” and “a refusal to admit the allegations is
equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or respondent states that it neither admits nor denies
the allegations.” As part of Defendant’s agreement to comply with the terms of Section 202.5(e),
Defendant: (i} will not take any action or make or permit to be made any public statement
denying, directly or indirectly, any allegation in the complaint or creating the impression that the
complaint is without factual basis; (if) will not make or permit to be made any public statement
to the effect that Defendant does not admit the allegations of the complaint, or that this Consent
contains no admission of the aliegations, without also stating that Defendant does not deny the
allegations; and (iif) upon the filing of this Consent, Defendant hereby withdraws any papers
filed in this action to the extent that they deny any allegation in the complaint. If Defendant
breaches this agreement, the Commission may petition the Court to vacate the Final Judgment
and restore this action to its active docket. Nothing in this paragraph affects Defendant’s: (i)
testimonial obligations; or (ii) right to take legal or factual positions in litigation or other legal
proceedings ih which the Commission is not a party.

12, Defendant hereby waives any rights under the Equal Access to Justice Act, the
‘Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to
seek from the United States, or any agency, or any official of the United States acting in his or
her official capacity, directly or indirectly, reimbursement of attorney’s fees or other fees,
expenses, or costs expended by Defendant to defend against this action. For these purposes,

Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing party in this action since the parties have
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reached a good faith settlement.

13. In connection with this action and any related judicial or administrative
proceeding or investigation commenced by the Commission or to which the Commission is a
party, Defendant (i) agrees to appear and be interviewed by Commission staff at such times and
places as the staff requests upon reasonable notice; (i) will accept service by mail or facsimile
transmission of notices or subpoenas issued by the Commission for documents or testimony at
depositions, hearings, or trials, or in connection with any related investigation by Commission
staff} (iii) appoints Defendant’s undersigned attorney as agent to receive service of such notices
and subpoenas; (iv) with respect to such notices and subpoenas, waives the territorial limits on
service contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and any applicable local
rules, provided that the party requesting the testimony reimburses Defendant's travel, lodging, and
subsistence expenses at the then-prevailing U.S. Government per diem rates; and (v) consents to
personal jurisdiction over Defendant in any United States District Court for purposes of
enforcing any such subpoena.

4, Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Final Judgment to the
Court for signature and entry without further notice.

15.  Defendant agrees that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter for the

purpose of enforcing the terms of the Final Judgment.

Dated: Vs /sy REVOLUTION LIGHTING
’/ TECHNOLOGIES,/JKC.

By: /W\,'

[Name of person signing for entity] RoneRT LT

[Title] & |

[Address] 14 BRorv ST, 12T CLourt
STWMERD, (F obho |
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On | 5 5([) l/ ?/O VLO b@'fjt \/ L@PL“’("'\' ,a person known to me,

personally appeared before me and acknowledged executing the foregomg Consent with full
authority to do so on behalf of QevolutH oo asits (ha(Crran, CE©

N Cannee~—

Notary Public
Commission expires:

’ﬂ(,\& O (/a//\/go(\(

Approved as to form: LoV V\‘)“’\ of— FCU r «[/L € w
f > ‘ Slede o U
\ A

[Defense attorney's name, address, and telephone number]

Attorney for Defendant
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

V. Case No. 3:220-cv-01440-CSH
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC., ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O’NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER.

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant
Revolution Lighting Technologies, Inc. (“Revolution™) having entered a general appearance;
consented to the Court’s jurisdiction over Defendant and the subject matter of this action;
consented to entry of this Final Judgment without admitting or denying the allegations of the
Complaint (except as to jurisdiction); waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; and waived
any right to appeal from this Final Judgment:

L

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is
permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 10(b) of the
Securities Exchange Actof 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)[15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5
promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5], by using any means or instrumentality of
interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national securities exchange, in

connection with the purchase or sale of any security:
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(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading; or

() to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would
operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

I1.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933
(the “Securities Act”)[15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)] in the offer or sale of any security by the use of any
means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use of the
mails, directly or indirectly:

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a material fact
or any omission of a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;
or

() to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates or
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would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

1.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restramed and enjoined from, directly or indirectly, violating Section 13(a) of the
Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, 13a-11, and 13a-13 thereunder [15
U.S.C. §§78m(a); 17 C.F.R. §§240.12b-20, 240.13a-1, 240.13a-11, and 240.13a-13] by failing to
file with the Commission accurate annual reports on Form 10-K, current reports on Form 8-K,
and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, or omitting from these reports such further material
information as is necessary to make the required statements in the reports not misleading.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

IV.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant

is permanently restrained and enjoined from, directly or indirectly, violating Section 13(b)(2)(A)

of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A)] by failing to make and keep books, records, and
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accounts which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposition
of its assets.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

V.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from, directly or indirectly, violating Section 13(b)(2)(B)
of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B)] to failing to devise and maintain a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that its financial
statements are prepared in conformity with GAAP or any other criteria applicable to those
statements.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

VL.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant shall pay a

civil penalty in the amount of $1,250,000 to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant

to Section 20(d) of the Securities Actand Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act. Defendant shall
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make this payment pursuant to the terms of the payment schedule set forth in paragraph VII
below after entry of this Final Judgment.

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide
detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly
from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at

http//www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank

cashier’s check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to

Enterprise Services Center

Accounts Receivable Branch

6500 South MacArthur Boulevard

Oklahoma City, OK 73169
and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of
this Court; Revolution Lighting Technologies, Inc. as a defendant in this action; and specifying
that payment is made pursuant to this Final Judgment.

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case
identifying information to the Commission’s counsel in this action. By making this payment,
Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part
of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. Defendant shall pay post-judgment interest

on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 USC § 1961.

VIL
Revolution shall pay the penalty of $1,250,000 in twelve installments to the Commission

according to the following schedule: (1) $150,000 within 30 days of entry of this Final


http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm
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Judgment; (2) $100,000 within 60 days of entry of this Final Judgment; (3) $100,000 within 90
days of entry of this Final Judgment; (4) $100,000 within 120 days of entry of this Final
Judgment; (5) $100,000 within 150 days of entry of this Final Judgment; (6) $100,000 within
180 days of entry of this Final Judgment; (7) $100,000 within 210 days of entry of this Final
Judgment; (8) $100,000 within 240 days of entry of this Final Judgment; (9) $100,000 within
270 days of entry of this Final Judgment; (10) $100,000 within 300 days of entry of this Final
Judgment; (11) $100,000 within 330 days of entry of this Final Judgment; and (12) $100,000
within 360 days of entry of this Final Judgment. Payments shall be deemed made on the date
they are received by the Commission and shall be applied first to post judgment interest, which
accrues pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961 on any unpaid amounts due after 30 days of the entry of
Fmnal Judgment. Prior to making the final payment set forth herein, Revolution shall contact the
staff of the Commission for the amount due for the final payment.

If Revolution fails to make any payment by the date agreed and/or in the amount
agreed according to the schedule set forth above, all outstanding payments under this Final
Judgment, including post-judgment interest, minus any payments made, shall become due and
payable immediately at the discretion of the staff of the Commission without further application
to the Court.

VIIIL
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is
incorporated herein with the same force and effectas if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein.

IX.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment.

X.
There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice.

Dated: ,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,
V.
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC, ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O’NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER.

Defendants.

Case No. 3:20-cv-01440-CSH

CONSENT OF DEFENDANT ROBERT LAPENTA

1. Defendant Robert LaPenta (“Defendant”) waives service of a summons and the

complaint in this action, enters a general appearance, and admits the Court’s jurisdiction over

Defendant and over the subject matter of this action.

2. Without admitting or denying the allegations of the complaint (except as provided

herein in paragraph 11 and except as to personal and subject matter jurisdiction, which

Defendant admits), Defendant hereby consents to the entry of the final Judgment in the form

attached hereto (the “Final Judgment™) and incorporated by reference herein, which, among other

things:

(a) permanently restrains and enjoins Defendant from violations of Sections

17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”)and

Rules 13a-14 and 13b2-1 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 (“Exchange Act”),and from aiding and abetting violations of

Sections 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A), 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act, and Rules

12b-20, 13a-1, 13a-11, and 13a-13, thereunder;
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®) orders Defendant to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $192,768 under
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the
Exchange Act.

3. Defendant agrees that he shall not seek or accept, directly or indirectly,
reimbursement or indemnification from any source, including but not limited to payment made
pursuant to any insurance policy, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that Defendant pays
pursuant to the Final Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof
are added to a distribution fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investors. Defendant further
agrees that he shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with regard to any
federal, state, or local tax for any penalty amounts that Defendant pays pursuant to the Final
Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof are added to a
distribution fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investors.

4. Defendant waives the entry of findings of factand conclusions of law pursuant to
Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

5. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury trial and to appeal from the entry of
the Final Judgment.

6. Defendant enters into this Consent voluntarily and represents that no threats,
offers, promises, or inducements of any kind have been made by the Commission or any
member, officer, employee, agent, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to
enter into this Consent.

7. Defendant agrees that this Consent shall be incorporated into the Final Judgment
with the same force and effect as if fully set forth therein.

8. Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judgment on the ground,
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if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and
hereby waives any objection based thereon.

9. Defendant waives service of the Final Judgment and agrees that entry of the Final
Judgment by the Court and filing with the Clerk of the Court will constitute notice to Defendant
of its terms and conditions. Defendant further agrees to provide counsel for the Commission,
within thirty days after the Final Judgment is filed with the Clerk of the Court, with an affidavit
or declaration stating that Defendant has received and read a copy of the Final Judgment.

10. Consistent with 17 C.F.R. 202.5(f), this Consent resolves only the claims asserted
against Defendant in this civil proceeding. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or
representation has been made by the Commission or any member, officer, employee, agent, or
representative of the Commission with regard to any criminal lability that may have arisen or
may arise from the facts underlying this action or immunity from any such criminal liability.
Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy based upon the settlement of this proceeding,
including the imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Defendant further acknowledges
that the Court’s entry of a permanent injunction may have collateral consequences under federal
or state law and the rules and regulations of self-regulatory organizations, licensing boards, and
other regulatory organizations. Such collateral consequences include, but are not limited to, a
statutory disqualification with respectto membership or participation in, or association with a
member of, a self-regulatory organization. This statutory disqualification has consequences that
are separate from any sanction imposed in an administrative proceeding. In addition, in any
disciplinary proceeding before the Commission based on the entry of the injunction in this
action, Defendant understands that he shall not be permitted to contest the factual allegations of

the complaint in this action.
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11.  Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the terms of 17 C.F.R.
§ 202.5(e), which provides in part that it is the Commission’s policy “not to permit a defendant
or respondent to consent to a judgment or order that imposes a sanction while denying the
allegations in the complaint or order for proceedings,” and “a refusal to admit the allegations is
equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or respondent states that he neither admits nor denies
the allegations.” As part of Defendant’s agreement to comply with the terms of Section 202.5(e),
Defendant: (i) will not take any action or make or permit to be made any public statement
denying, directly or indirectly, any allegation in the complaint or creating the impression that the
complaint is without factual basis; (if) will not make or permit to be made any public statement
to the effect that Defendant does not admit the allegations of the complaint, or that this Consent
contains no admission of the allegations, without also stating that Defendant does not deny the
allegations; (iii) upon the filing of this Consent, Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in
this action to the extent that they deny any allegation in the complaint; and (iv) stipulates solely
for purposes of exceptions to discharge set forthin Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11
U.S.C. §523, that the allegations in the complaint are true, and further, that any debt for
disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under the
Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or setflement agreement
entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal
securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section
523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §523(a)(19). If Defendant breaches this
agreement, the Commission may petition the Court to vacate the Final Judgment and restore this

action to its active docket. Nothing in this paragraph affects Defendant’s: (i) testimonial

obligations; or (i) right to take legal or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedings
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in which the Commission is not a party.

12 Defendant hereby waives any rights under the Equal Access to Justice Act, the
Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to
seek from the United States, or any agency, or any official of the United States acting in his or
her official capacity, directly or indirectly, reimbursement of attorney’s fees or other fees,
expenses, or costs expended by Defendant to defend against this action. For these purposes,
Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing party in this action since the parties have
reached a good faith settlement.

13. In connection with this action and any related judicial or administrative
proceeding or investigation commenced by the Commission or to which the Commission is a
party, Defendant (i) agrees to appear and be interviewed by Commission staff at such times and
places as the staff requests upon reasonable notice; (i) will accept service by mail or facsimile
transmission of notices or subpoenas issued by the Commission for documents or testimony at
depositions, hearings, or trials, or in connection with any related investigation by Commission
staff; (i) appoints Defendant’s undersigned attorney as agent to receive service of such notices
and subpoenas; (iv) with respect to such notices and subpoenas, waives the territorial limits on
service contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and any applicable local
tules, provided that the party requesting the testimony reimburses Defendant's travel, lodging, and
subsistence expenses at the then-prevailing U.S. Government per diem rates; and (v) consents to
personal jurisdiction over Defendant in any United States District Court for purposes of
enforcing any such subpoena.

14. Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Final Judgment to the

Court for signature and entry without further notice.

(o]}
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15, Defendant agrees that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter for the

purpose of enforcing the terms of the Final Judgment.

7

77 %
: £ Z
Dated: 7 &?}E} /é —Z—
“/ Robert LaPenta

On - O-‘: &D;EOZU, Qo\ae f\f LG\,P’&‘\ = ,a person known to me,

personally appeared before me and acknowledged executing the foregoing Consent.

ﬁbtary Public
Commission expires:

[ofz1 22,

Teina O'Canal
G

Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP

901 Fifteenth Street, NW, Suite 800
Washington, D.C. 20005

Tel.: (202) 729-7480

Attorney for Defendant
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

V. Case No. 3:220-cv-01440-CSH
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC., ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O’NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER.

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT ROBERT LAPENTA

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant
Robert LaPenta having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court’s jurisdiction over
Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment
without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to jurisdiction and
except as otherwise provided herein in paragraph 1X); waived findings of fact and conclusions of
law; and waived any right to appeal from this Final Judgment:

L.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is
permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 17(a)(2) and (3) of the Securities Act
of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)] i the offer or sale of any security by the use
of any means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by

use of the mails, directly or indirectly:
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(a) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a material fact
or any omission of a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;
or

(b) to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates or
would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

I1.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Rule 13a-14 promulgated under the
Exchange Act[17 C.F.R. § 240.13a-14] by falsely certifying quarterly and annual reports of an
issuer issued pursuant to Section 301 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Actof 2002 and Exchange Act Rule
13a-14.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who

receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
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officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).
1.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Rule 13b2-1 promulgated under the
Exchange Act[17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-1] by directly or indirectly, falsifiying or causing to be
falsified Revolution’s books, records, and/or accounts subject to Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the
Exchange Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

IV.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section 13(a) of
the Securities Exchange Actof 1934 (“Exchange Act”)[15 U.S.C. § 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20,
13a-1, 13a-11, and 13a-13 thereunder [15 U.S.C. §§78m(a); 17 C.F.R. §§240.12b-20, 240.13a-1,
240.13a-11, and 240.13a-13] by knowingly or recklessly providing substantial assistance to an
issuer that fails to file with the Commission accurate annual reports on Form 10-K, current
reports on Form 8-K, and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, or omitting from these reports such
further material mformation as is necessary to make the required statements in the reports not

misleading.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

V.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section
13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A)] by knowingly or recklessly
providing substantial assistance to an issuer that fails to make and keep books, records, and
accounts which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposition
of its assets.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

VI

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section
13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B)] by knowingly or recklessly

providing substantial assistance to an issuer that fails to devise and maintain a system of internal
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accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that its financial statements are
prepared in conformity with GAAP or any other criteria applicable to those statements.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

VIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant shall pay a
civil penalty in the amount of $192,768 to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act. Defendant shall
make this payment within 30 days after entry of this Final Judgment.

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide
detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly
from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at

http//www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank

cashier’s check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to

Enterprise Services Center

Accounts Receivable Branch

6500 South MacArthur Boulevard

Oklahoma City, OK 73169
and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of

this Court; Robert LaPenta as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is made

pursuant to this Final Judgment.
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Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case
identifying information to the Commission’s counsel in this action. By making this payment,
Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part
of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant
to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. Defendant shall pay post-judgment interest
on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 USC § 1961.

VIIIL.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is
mcorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant
shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein.

IX.

ITISFURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, solely for purposes of
exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §523, the
allegations in the complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for
disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this
Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement
entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal
securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section
523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §523(a)(19).

X.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment.
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XI.
There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice.

Dated: ,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

V. Case No. 3:20-cv-01440-CSH
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC, ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O°’NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER.

Defendants.

CONSENT OF DEFENDANT JAMES DEPALMA

L. Defendant James DePalma (“Defendant”) waives service of a summons and the
complaint in this action, enters a general appearance, and admits the Court’s jurisdiction over
Defendant and over the subject matter of this action.

2. Without admitting or denying the allegations of the complaint (except as provided
herein in paragraph 11 and except as to personal and subject matter jurisdiction, which
Defendant admits), Defendant hereby consents to the entry of the final Judgment in the form
attached hereto (the “Final Judgment”) and incorporated by reference herein, which, among other
things:

(a) permanently restrains and enjoins Defendant from violations of Sections
17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”),
13(b)(5) of the Securities Exchange Actof 1934 (“Exchange Act”)and
Rules 13a-14 and 13b2-1 promulgated under the Exchange Act, and from
aiding and abetting violations of Sections 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A), 13(b)(2)(B)

of the Exchange Act, and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, 13a-11, and 13a-13
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thereunder;

(b) orders Defendant to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $100,000 under
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the
Exchange Act.

3. Defendant agrees that he shall not seek or accept, directly or indirectly,
reimbursement or indemnification from any source, including but not limited to payment made
pursuant to any insurance policy, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that Defendant pays
pursuant to the Final Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof
are added to a distribution fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investors. Defendant further
agrees that he shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with regard to any
federal, state, or local tax for any penalty amounts that Defendant pays pursuant to the Final
Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof are added to a
distribution fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investors.

4. Defendant waives the entry of findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to
Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

5. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury trial and to appeal from the entry of
the Final Judgment.

6. Defendant enters into this Consent voluntarily and represents that no threats,
offers, promises, or inducements of any kind have been made by the Commission or any
member, officer, employee, agent, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to
enter into this Consent.

7. Defendant agrees that this Consent shall be incorporated into the Final Judgment

with the same force and effect as if fully set forth therein.
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8. Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judgment on the ground,
if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and
hereby waives any objection based thereon.

9. Defendant waives service of the Final Judgment and agrees that entry of the Final
Judgment by the Court and filing with the Clerk of the Court will constitute notice to Defendant
of its terms and conditions. Defendant further agrees to provide counsel for the Commission,
within thirty days after the Final Judgment is filed with the Clerk of the Court, with an affidavit
or declaration stating that Defendant has received and read a copy of the Final Judgment.

10. Consistent with 17 C.F.R. 202.5(f), this Consent resolves only the claims asserted
against Defendant in this civil proceeding. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or
representation has been made by the Commission or any member, officer, employee, agent, or
representative of the Commission with regard to any criminal liability that may have arisen or
may arise from the facts underlying this action or immunity from any such criminal hLability.
Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy based upon the settlement of this proceeding,
mncluding the imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Defendant further acknowledges
that the Court’s entry of a permanent injunction may have collateral consequences under federal
or state law and the rules and regulations of self-regulatory organizations, licensing boards, and
other regulatory organizations. Such collateral consequences include, but are not limited to, a
statutory disqualification with respect to membership or participation in, or association with a
member of, a self-regulatory organization. This statutory disqualification has consequences that
are separate from any sanction imposed in an administrative proceeding. In addition, in any
disciplinary proceeding before the Commission based on the entry of the injunction in this

action, Defendant understands that he shall not be permitted to contest the factual allegations of
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the complaint i this action.

11. Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the terms of 17 C.F.R.
§ 202.5(e), which provides in part that it is the Commission’s policy “not to permit a defendant
or respondent to consent to a judgment or order that imposes a sanction while denying the
allegations n the complaint or order for proceedings,” and “a refusal to admit the allegations is
equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or respondent states that he neither admits nor denies
the allegations.” As part of Defendant’s agreement to comply with the terms of Section 202.5(e),
Defendant: (i) will not take any action or make or permit to be made any public statement
denying, directly or indirectly, any allegation in the complaint or creating the impression that the
complaint is without factual basis; (i) will not make or permit to be made any public statement
to the effect that Defendant does not admit the allegations of the complaint, or that this Consent
contains no admission of the allegations, without also stating that Defendant does not deny the
allegations; (i) upon the filing of this Consent, Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in
this action to the extent that they deny any allegation in the complaint; and (iv) stipulates solely
for purposes of exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11
U.S.C. §523, that the allegations in the complaint are true, and further, that any debt for
disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under the
Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement
entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal
securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section
523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §523(a)(19). If Defendant breaches this
agreement, the Commission may petition the Court to vacate the Final Judgment and restore this

action to its active docket. Nothing in this paragraph affects Defendant’s: (1) testimonial
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obligations; or (i) right to take legal or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedings
in which the Commission is not a party.

12. Defendant hereby waives any rights under the Equal Access to Justice Act, the
Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to
seek from the United States, or any agency, or any official of the United States acting in his or
her official capacity, directly or indirectly, reimbursement of attorney’s fees or other fees,
expenses, or costs expended by Defendant to defend against this action. For these purposes,
Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing party in this action since the parties have
reached a good faith settlement.

13. In connection with this action and any related judicial or administrative
proceeding or mvestigation commenced by the Commission or to which the Commission is a
party, Defendant (i) agrees to appear and be interviewed by Commission staff at such times and
places as the staffrequests upon reasonable notice; (i) will accept service by mail or facsimile
transmission of notices or subpoenas issued by the Commission for documents or testimony at
depositions, hearings, or trials, or in connection with any related investigation by Commission
staff; (i) appoints Defendant’s undersigned attorney as agent to receive service of such notices
and subpoenas; (iv) with respect to such notices and subpoenas, waives the territorial limits on
service contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and any applicable local
rules, provided that the party requesting the testimony reimburses Defendant's travel, lodging, and
subsistence expenses at the then-prevailing U.S. Government per diem rates; and (v) consents to
personal jurisdiction over Defendant in any United States District Court for purposes of
enforcing any such subpoena.

14. Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Final Judgment to the
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Court for signature and entry without further notice.

15. Defendant agrees that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter for the

purpose of enforcing the terms of the Final Judgment.

Dated: ﬁ“}%):& 020 Q/a/\, M\"

rﬂames DePalma
On Q < , 2020, ISG. ¢S DQ QPr\ | (N G , a person known to me,

personally appeared before me and acknowledged executing the foregoing Consent.

(‘ ) 0 (A ( AN
A hend 4 donuun-
.- Notary Public

Commission expires:

Catherine A, Sommer
Notary Public, State of Connecticut
" My Commission Explres 613072025

Approved asto form:

(NS
[Defense attorney's name, address, and telephone number]
Attorney for Defendant

Andrew M. Calamac
Finn Dixon ¢14u1;n3 LLP
6 LandmarK Square
StamFord, CT 0690]
(203) 3&5- 5057
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

V. Case No. 3:220-cv-01440-CSH
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC., ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O’NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER.

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT JAMES DEPALMA

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant James
DePalma having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court’s jurisdiction over
Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment
without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to jurisdiction and
except as otherwise provided herein in paragraph XI); waived findings of fact and conclusions of
law; and waived any right to appeal from this Final Judgment:

L.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is
permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 17(a)(2) and (3) of the Securities Act
of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)] i the offer or sale of any security by the use
of any means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by

use of the mails, directly or indirectly:
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(a) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a material fact
or any omission of a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;
or

(b) to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates or
would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

I1.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section 13(a) of
the Securities Exchange Actof 1934 (“Exchange Act”)[15 U.S.C. § 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20,
13a-1, 13a-11, and 13a-13 thereunder [15 U.S.C. §§78m(a); 17 C.F.R. §§240.12b-20, 240.13a-1,
240.13a-11, and 240.13a-13] by knowingly or recklessly providing substantial assistance to an
issuer that fails to file with the Commission accurate annual reports on Form 10-K, current
reports on Form 8-K, and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, or omitting from these reports such
further material mformation as is necessary to make the required statements in the reports not
misleading.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
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receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

1.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section
13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A)] by knowingly or recklessly
providing substantial assistance to an issuer that fails to make and keep books, records, and
accounts which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposition
of its assets.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

IV.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section
13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B)] by knowingly or recklessly
providing substantial assistance to an issuer that fails to devise and maintain a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that its financial statements are

prepared in conformity with GAAP or any other criteria applicable to those statements.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

V.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 13(b)(5) of the Exchange Act[15
U.S.C. § 78m(b)(5)] by knowingly circumventing or knowingly failing to implement a system of
internal accounting controls or from knowingly falsifying any book, record, or account.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

VI

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Rule 13b2-1 promulgated under the
Exchange Act[17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-1] by directly or indirectly, falsifiying or causing to be
falsified Revolution’s books, records, and/or accounts subject to Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the
Exchange Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who



Case 3:20-cv-01440-CSH Document 5-6 Filed 09/24/20 Page 5 of 8

receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

VIL

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Rule 13a-14 promulgated under the
Exchange Act[17 C.F.R. § 240.13a-14] by falsely certifying quarterly and annual reports of an
issuer issued pursuant to Section 301 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Actof 2002 and Exchange Act Rule
13a-14.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

VIIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant shall pay a
civil penalty in the amount of $100,000 to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act. Defendant shall
make this payment pursuant to the terms of the payment schedule set forth in paragraph IX
below after entry of this Final Judgment.

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide
detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at
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http//www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank

cashier’s check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to

Enterprise Services Center

Accounts Receivable Branch

6500 South MacArthur Boulevard

Oklahoma City, OK 73169
and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of
this Court; James DePalma as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is made
pursuant to this Final Judgment.

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case
identifying information to the Commission’s counsel in this action. By making this payment,
Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part
of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant
to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. Defendant shall pay post-judgment interest
on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 USC § 1961.

IX.

James DePalma shall pay the penalty due of $100,000 in four installment payments to the
Commission according to the following schedule: (1) $25,000 within 30 days of entry of this
Final Judgment; (2) $25,000 within 150 days of entry of this Final Judgment; (2) $25,000 within
270 days of entry of this Final Judgment; and (2) $25,000 within 364 days of entry of this Final
Judgment. Payments shall be deemed made on the date they are received by the Commission

and shall be applied first to post judgment interest, which accrues pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961

on any unpaid amounts due after 30 days of the entry of Final Judgment. Prior to making the
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final payment set forth herein, James DePalma shall contact the staff of the Commission for the
amount due for the final payment.

If James DePalma fails to make any payment by the date agreed and/or in the amount
agreed according to the schedule set forth above, all outstanding payments under this Final
Judgment, including post-judgment interest, minus any payments made, shall become due and
payable immediately at the discretion of the staff of the Commission without further application
to the Court.

X.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is
incorporated herein with the same force and effectas if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant
shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein.

XI.

ITISFURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, solely for purposes of
exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §523, the
allegations in the complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for
disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this
Fnal Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement
entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal
securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth m Section
523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §523(a)(19).

XII.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment.
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XIII.
There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice.

Dated: ,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

V. Case No. 3:20-cv-01440-CSH
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC., ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O’NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER,

Defendants.

CONSENT OF DEFENDANT ALLEN GARNER

1. Defendant Allen Garner (“Defendant”) waives service of a summons and the
complaint in this action, enters a general appearance, and admits the Court’s jurisdiction over
Defendant and over the subject matter of this action.

2. Without admitting or denying the allegations of the complaint (except as provided
herein in paragraph 11 and except as to personal and subject matter jurisdiction, which
Defendant admits), Defendant hereby consents to the entry of the final Judgment in the form
attached hereto (the “Final Judgment”) and incorporated by reference herein, which, among other
things:

(a) permanently restrains and enjoins Defendant from violations of Sections
17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”), Sections 10(b) and
13(b)(5) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) and
Rules 10b-5, 13b2-1, and 13b2-2 promulgated under the Exchange Act,
and from aiding and abetting violations of Sections 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A),

13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act, and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, 13a-11, and



Case 3:20-cv-01440-CSH Document 5-7 Filed 09/24/20 Page 2 of 7

13a-13 thereunder;

(b) orders Defendant to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $25,000 under
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the
Exchange Act;

(© prohibits Defendant from acting as an officer or director of any issuer that
has a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange
Act [15 U.S.C. § 78]] or that is required to file reports pursuant to Section
15(d) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 780(d)], under Section 20(e) of
the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, for five years
following the entry of final judgment.

3. Defendant agrees that he shall not seek or accept, directly or indirectly,
reimbursement or indemnification from any source, including but not limited to payment made
pursuant to any insurance policy, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that Defendant pays
pursuant to the Final Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof
are added to a distribution fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investors. Defendant further
agrees that he shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with regard to any
federal, state, or local tax for any penalty amounts that Defendant pays pursuant to the Final
Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof are added to a
distribution fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investors.

4, Defendant waives the entry of findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to
Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

5. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury trial and to appeal from the entry of

the Final Judgment.

2
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6. Defendant enters into this Consent voluntarily and represents that no threats,
offers, promises, or inducements of any kind have been made by the Commission or any
member, officer, employee, agent, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to
enter into this Consent.

7. Defendant agrees that this Consent shall be incorporated into the Final Judgment
with the same force and effect as if fully set forth therein.

8. Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judgment on the ground,
if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and
hereby waives any objection based thereon.

9. Defendant waives service of the Final Judgment and agrees that entry of the Final
Judgment by the Court and filing with the Clerk of the Court will constitute notice to Defendant
of its terms and conditions. Defendant further agrees to provide counsel for the Commission,
within thirty days after the Final Judgment is filed with the Clerk of the Court, with an affidavit
or declaration stating that Defendant has received and read a copy of the Final Judgment.

10. Consistent with 17 C.F.R. 202.5(f), this Consent resolves only the claims asserted
against Defendant in this civil proceeding. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or
representation has been made by the Commission or any member, officer, employee, agent, or
representative of the Commission with regard to any criminal liability that may have arisen or
may arise from the facts underlying this action or immunity from any such criminal liability.
Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy based upon the settlement of this proceeding,
including the imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Defendant further acknowledges
that the Court’s entry of a permanent injunction may have collateral consequences under federal

or state law and the rules and regulations of self-regulatory organizations, licensing boards, and
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other regulatory organizations. Such collateral consequences include, but are not limited to, a
statutory disqualification with respect to membership or participation in, or association with a
member of, a self-regulatory organization. This statutory disqualification has consequences that
are separate from any sanction imposed in an administrative proceeding. In addition, in any
disciplinary proceeding before the Commission based on the entry of the injunction in this
action, Defendant understands that he shall not be permitted to contest the factual allegations of
the complaint in this action.

11.  Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the terms of 17 C.F.R.
§ 202.5(e), which provides in part that it is the Commission’s policy “not to permit a defendant
or respondent to consent to a judgment or order that imposes a sanction while denying the
allegations in the complaint or order for proceedings,” and “a refusal to admit the allegations is
equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or respondent states that he neither admits nor denies
the allegations.” As part of Defendant’s agreement to comply with the terms of Section 202.5(e),
Defendant: (i) will not take any action or make or permit to be made any public statement
denying, directly or indirectly, any allegation in the complaint or creating the impression that the
complaint is without factual basis; (ii) will not make or permit to be made any public statement
to the effect that Defendant does not admit the allegations of the complaint, or that this Consent
contains no admission of the allegations, without also stating that Defendant does not deny the
allegations; (iii) upon the filing of this Consent, Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in
this action to the extent that they deny any allegation in the complaint; and (iv) stipulates solely
for purposes of exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11
U.S.C. § 523, that the allegations in the complaint are true, and further, that any debt for

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under the
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Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement
entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal
securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section
523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(19). If Defendant breaches this
agreement, the Commission may petition the Court to vacate the Final Judgment and restore this
action to its active docket. Nothing in this paragraph affects Defendant’s: (i) testimonial
obligations; or (ii) right to take legal or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedings
in which the Commission is not a party.

12. Defendant hereby waives any rights under the Equal Access to Justice Act, the
Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to
seek from the United States, or any agency, or any official of the United States acting in his or
her official capacity, directly or indirectly, reimbursement of attorney’s fees or other fees,
expenses, or costs expended by Defendant to defend against this action. For these purposes,
Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing party in this action since the parties have
reached a good faith settlement.

13. In connection with this action and any related judicial or administrative
proceeding or investigation commenced by the Commission or to which the Commission is a
party, Defendant (i) agrees to appear and be interviewed by Commission staff at such times and
places as the staff requests upon reasonable notice; (ii) will accept service by mail or facsimile
transmission of notices or subpoenas issued by the Commission for documents or testimony at
depositions, hearings, or trials, or in connection with any related investigation by Commission
staff; (iii) appoints Defendant’s undersigned attorney as agent to receive service of such notices

and subpoenas; (iv) with respect to such notices and subpoenas, waives the territorial limits on
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service contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and any applicable local
rules, provided that the party requesting the testimony reimburses Defendant's travel, lodging, and
subsistence expenses at the then-prevailing U.S. Government per diem rates; and (v) consents to
personal jurisdiction over Defendant in any United States District Court for purposes of
enforcing any such subpoena.

14. Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Final Judgment to the
Court for signature and entry without further notice.

15.  Defendant agrees that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter for the

purpose of enforcing the terms of the Final Judgment.

oae: 1117 |20 ﬂ ™

Allen Garner

On , 2020, , a person known to me,
personally appeared before me and acknowledged executing the foregoing Consent.

Notary Public
Commission expires:

Approved as to form:

[Defense attorney's name, address, and telephone number]
Attorney for Defendant
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CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189
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A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is a‘tached, and not the truthfuiness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California )

County of _ o ‘acer )

on_OA I\’l | 3020 beforeme. _Julie Hammond, Notary Public |
Date , Here Insert Name and Title of the Offlcer

personally appeared A" \m G’(ar YM’A/:' e

Name(s) of Signer_(s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are
ubscribed to the within instrument and acknowliedged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/her/thenr authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature - V\_‘Q,LQ 4 _O_‘M )

Signature of Notary Public

Place Notary Seal Above

OPTIONAL
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document.
Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document: _C,O(E-f(")( O{j_bé,&(ﬁi&ﬂbocument Date:

Number of Pages: _ Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: ___ R I
Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)
Signer’'s Name: Signer’'s Name:
Corporate Off.cer — Title(s): Corporate Officer — Title(s):
Partner — Limited General Partner — Limited 1 General
Individual Attorney in Fact Iindividual Attorney in Fact
Trustes Guardian or Conservator ! Trustee Guardian or Conservator
Other: .+ Other:
Signer Is Representing: Signer Is Representing:
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

V. Case No. 3:220-cv-01440-CSH
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC., ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O’NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER,

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT ALLEN GARNER

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant Allen
Garner having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court’s jurisdiction over
Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment
without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to jurisdiction and
except as otherwise provided herein in paragraph XIII); waived findings of fact and conclusions
of law; and waived any right to appeal from this Final Judgment:

L.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is
permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 10(b) of the
Securities Exchange Actof 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)[15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5
promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5], by using any means or instrumentality of
mterstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national securities exchange, n

connection with the purchase or sale of any security:
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(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading; or

() to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would
operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

I1.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933
(the “Securities Act”)[15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)] in the offer or sale of any security by the use of any
means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use of the
mails, directly or indirectly:

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a material fact
or any omission of a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;
or

() to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates or
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would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

1.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section 13(a) of
the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, 13a-11, and 13a-13 thereunder
[15 U.S.C. §§78m(a); 17 C.F.R. §§240.12b-20, 240.13a-1, 240.13a-11, and 240.13a-13] by
knowingly or recklessly providing substantial assistance to an issuer that fails to file with the
Commission accurate annual reports on Form 10-K, current reports on Form 8-K, and quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, or omitting from these reports such further material information as is
necessary to make the required statements in the reports not misleading.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

IV.
IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant

is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section
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13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A)] by knowingly or recklessly
providing substantial assistance to an issuer that fails to make and keep books, records, and
accounts which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposition
of its assets.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

V.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section
13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B)] by knowingly or recklessly
providing substantial assistance to an issuer that fails to devise and maintain a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that its financial statements are
prepared in conformity with GAAP or any other criteria applicable to those statements.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who

receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
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officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).
VL.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 13(b)(5) of the Exchange Act[15
U.S.C. § 78m(b)(5)] by knowingly circumventing or knowingly failing to implement a system of
mternal accounting controls or from knowingly falsifying any book, record, or account.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

VIL

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Rule 13b2-1 promulgated under the
Exchange Act[17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-1] by directly or indirectly, falsifiying or causing to be
falsified Revolution’s books, records, and/or accounts subject to Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the
Exchange Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who

receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
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officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).
VIIIL

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Rule 13b2-2 promulgated under the
Exchange Act[17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-2] by, while acting as a director or officer of an issuer,
directly or indirectly, making or causing to be made any materially false statement to an
accountant, or omitting to state or causing another person to omit to state to an accountant any
material fact necessary to make statements made not misleading, in connection with any audit,
review, or examination of the financial statements of an issuer or the preparation of a document
or report required to be filed with the Commission, or taking any action to coerce, manipulate,
mislead, or fraudulently influence any independent accountant engaged in the performance of an
audit or review of financial statements of that issuer.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

IX.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, pursuant to Section
21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(2)] and Section 20(e) of the Securities Act[15
U.S.C. § 77t(e)]], Defendant is prohibited, for 5 years following the date of entry of this Final

Judgment, from acting as an officer or director of any issuer that has a class of securities
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registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78l] or that is required to file
reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 780(d)].
X.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant shall pay a
civil penalty in the amount of $25,000 to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act. Defendant shall
make this payment pursuant to the terms of the payment schedule set forth in paragraph XI
below after entry of this Final Judgment.

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide
detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly
from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at

http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank

cashier’s check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to

Enterprise Services Center

Accounts Receivable Branch

6500 South MacArthur Boulevard

Oklahoma City, OK 73169
and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of
this Court; Allen Garner as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is made
pursuant to this Final Judgment.

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case
identifying information to the Commission’s counsel in this action. By making this payment,

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant
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to this Fmnal Judgment to the United States Treasury. Defendant shall pay post-judgment interest
on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961.
XI.

Defendant shall pay the penalty due of $25,000 in four installment payments to the
Commission according to the following schedule: (1) $10,000 within 30 days of entry of this
Final Judgment; (2) $5,000 within 180 days of entry of this Final Judgment; (2) $5,000 within
270 days of entry of this Final Judgment; and (2) $5,000 within 364 days of entry of this Final
Judgment. Payments shall be deemed made on the date they are received by the Commission
and shall be applied first to post judgment nterest, which accrues pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961
on any unpaid amounts due after 30 days of the entry of Final Judgment. Prior to making the
final payment set forth herein, Defendant shall contact the staff of the Commission for the
amount due for the final payment.

If Defendant fails to make any payment by the date agreed and/or in the amount
agreed according to the schedule set forth above, all outstanding payments under this Final
Judgment, including post-judgment interest, minus any payments made, shall become due and
payable immediately at the discretion of the staff of the Commission without further application
to the Court.

XII.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein.
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XIII.

ITISFURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, solely for purposes of
exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the
allegations in the complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for
disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this
Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement
entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal
securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section
523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(19).

XIV.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment.
XV.
There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice.

Dated: ,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,
\2

REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC, ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O’NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER.

Defendants.

Case No. 3:20-cv-01440-CSH

CONSENT OF DEFENDANT DANIEL O’NEAL

1. Defendant Daniel O’Neal (“Defendant”) waives service of a summons and the

complaint in this action, enters a general appearance, and admits the Court’s jurisdiction over

Defendant and over the subject matter of this action.

2. Without admitting or denying the allegations of the complaint (except as provided

herein in paragraph 11 and except as to personal and subject matter jurisdiction, which

Defendant admits), Defendant hereby consents to the entry of the final Judgment in the form

attached hereto (the “Final Judgment”) and incorporated by reference herein, which, among other

things:

(a)  permanently restrains and enjoins Defendant from violations of Sections

17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”) and

13(b)(5) of the Securities Exchange Actof 1934 (“Exchange Act”), and

Rule 13b2-1 promulgated under the Exchange Act, and from aiding and

abetting violations of Sections 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A), and 13(b)(2)(B) of the

Exchange Act, and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, 13a-11, and 13a-13 thereunder;
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(b)  orders Defendant to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $25,000 under
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the
Exchange Act.

3. Defendant agrees that he shall not seek or accept, directly or indirectly,
reimbursement or indemnification from any source, including but not limited to payment made
pursuant to any insurance policy, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that Defendant pays
pursuant to the Final Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof
are added to a distribution fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investors. Defendant further
agrees that he shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with regard to any
federal, state, or local tax for any penalty amounts that Defendant pays pursuant to the Final
Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof are added to a
distribution fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investors.

4. Defendant waives the entry of findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to
Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

5. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury trial and to appeal from the entry of
the Final Judgment.

6. Defendant enters into this Consent voluntarily and represents that no threats,
offers, promises, or inducements. of any kind have been made by the Commission or any
member, officer, employee, agent, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to
enter into this Consent.

7. Defendant agrees that this Consent shall be incorporated into the Final Judgment
with the same force and effect as if fully set forth therein.

8. Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judgment on the ground,
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if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and
hereby waives any objection based thereon.

9. Defendant waives service of the Final Judgment and agrees that entry of the Final
Judgment by the Court and filing with the Clerk of the Court will constitute notice to Defendant
of its terms and conditions. Defendant further agrees to provide counsel for the Commission,
within thirty days after the Final Judgment is filed with the Clerk of the Court, with an affidavit
or declaration stating that Defendant has received and read a copy of the Final Judgment.

10. Consistent with 17 C.F.R. 202.5(f), this Consent resolves only the claims asserted
against Defendant in this civil proceeding. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or
representation has been made by the Commission or any member, officer, employee, agent, or
representative of the Commission with regard to any criminal liability that may have arisen or
may arise from the facts underlying this action or immunity from any such criminal liability.
Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy based upon the settlement of this proceeding,
including the imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Defendant further acknowledges
that the Court’s entry of a permanent injunction may have collateral consequences under federal
or state law and the rules and regulations of self-regulatory organizations, licensing boards, and
other regulatory organizations. Such collateral consequences include, but are not limited to, a
statutory disqualification with respect to membership or participation in, or association with a
member of, a self-regulatory organization. This statutory disqualification has consequences that
are separate from any sanction imposed in an administrative proceeding. In addition, in any
disciplinary proceeding before the Commission based on the entry of the injunction in this
action, Defendant understands that he shall not be permitted to contest the factual allegations of

the complaint in this action.
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11.  Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the terms of 17 C.F.R.
§ 202.5(e), which provides in part that it is the Commission’s policy “not to permit a defendant
or respondent to consent to a judgment or order that imposes a sanction while denying the
allegations in the complaint or order for proceedings,” and “a refusal to admit the allegations is
equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or respondent states that he neither admits nor denies
the allegations.” As part of Defendant’s agreement to comply with the terms of Section 202.5(e),
Defendant: (i) will not take any action or make or permit to be made any public statement
denying, directly or indirectly, any allegation in the complaint or creating the impression that the
complaint is without factual basis; (i) will not make or permit to be made any public statement
to the effect that Defendant does not admit the allegations of the complaint, or that this Consent
contains no admission of the allegations, without also stating that Defendant does not deny the
allegations; (ii)) upon the filing of this Consent, Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in
this action to the extent that they deny any allegation in the complaint; and (iv) stipulates solely
for purposes of exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11
U.S.C. §523, that the allegations in the complaint are true, and further, that any debt for
disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under the
Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement
entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal
securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section
523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §523(a)(19). If Defendant breaches this
agreement, the Commission may petition the Court to vacate the Final Judgment and restore this
action to its active docket. Nothing in this paragraph affects Defendant’s: (i) testimonial

obligations; or (ii) right to take legal or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedings
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in which the Commission is not a party.

12.  Defendant hereby waives any rights under the Equal Access to Justice Act, the
Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to
seek from the United States, or any agency, or any official of the United States acting in his or
her official capacity, directly or indirectly, reimbursement of attorney’s fees or other fees,
expenses, or costs expended by Defendant to defend against this action. For these purposes,
Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing party in this action since the parties have
reached a good faith settlement.

13.  Inconnection with this action and any related judicial or administrative
proceeding or investigation commenced by the Commission or to which the Commission is a
party, Defendant (i) agrees to appear and be interviewed by Commission staff at such times and
places as the staff requests upon reasonable notice; (i) will accept service by mail or facsimile
transmission of notices or subpoenas issued by the Commission for documents or testimony at
depositions, hearings, or trials, or in connection with any related investigation by Commission
staff; (iii) appoints Defendant’s undersigned attorney as agent to receive service of such notices
and subpoenas; (iv) with respect to such notices and subpoenas, waives the territorial limits on
service contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and any applicable local
rules, provided that the party requesting the testimony reimburses Defendant's travel, lodging, and
subsistence expenses at the then-prevailing U.S. Government per diem rates; and (v) consents to
personal jurisdiction over Defendant in any United States District Court for purposes of
enforcing any such subpoena.

14. Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Final Judgment to the

Court for signature and entry without further notice.
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15. Defendant agrees that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter for the

purpose of enforcing the terms of the Final Judgment.

Dated: 9/%/’0 /

DanieT O Neal
On IDQPEMC@' H . 2020, —D.\V\(CL Q N ,a person known to me,

LY
= ,\*... ..... oos )}\ )
9. R W
\.' O“AR}, .o. "

;< . 9
I e Ot a Notary Public
NigZ  Commission expires: Ot \QKQ \QUQ\/
”

Vst
Approved as to form:

AL AL

Matthew N. Kane

Donnelly, Conroy & Gelhaar, LLP
260 Franklin Street, Suite 1600
Boston, Massachusetts 02110

Tel: (617) 720-2880

Email: mnk@dcglaw.com
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

V. Case No. 3:220-cv-01440-CSH
REVOLUTION LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,
INC., ROBERT LAPENTA, JAMES DEPALMA
DANIEL O’NEAL, and ALLEN GARNER.

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT DANIEL O’NEAL

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant
Daniel O’Neal having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court’s jurisdiction over
Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment
without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to jurisdiction and
except as otherwise provided herein in paragraph 1X); waived findings of fact and conclusions of
law; and waived any right to appeal from this Final Judgment:

L.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is
permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 17(a)(2) and (3) of the Securities Act
of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)] i the offer or sale of any security by the use
of any means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by

use of the mails, directly or indirectly:
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(a) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a material fact
or any omission of a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;
or

(b) to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates or
would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

I1.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section 13(a) of
the Securities Exchange Actof 1934 (“Exchange Act”)[15 U.S.C. § 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20,
13a-1, 13a-11, and 13a-13 thereunder [15 U.S.C. §§78m(a); 17 C.F.R. §§240.12b-20, 240.13a-1,
240.13a-11, and 240.13a-13] by knowingly or recklessly providing substantial assistance to an
issuer that fails to file with the Commission accurate annual reports on Form 10-K, current
reports on Form 8-K , and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, or omitting from these reports such
further material mformation as is necessary to make the required statements in the reports not
misleading.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
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receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

1.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section
13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A)] by knowingly or recklessly
providing substantial assistance to an issuer that fails to make and keep books, records, and
accounts which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposition
of its assets.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

IV.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding and abetting any violation of Section
13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act[15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B)] by knowingly or recklessly
providing substantial assistance to an issuer that fails to devise and maintain a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that its financial statements are

prepared in conformity with GAAP or any other criteria applicable to those statements.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

V.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 13(b)(5) of the Exchange Act[15
U.S.C. § 78m(b)(5)] by knowingly circumventing or knowingly failing to implement a system of
mternal accounting controls or from knowingly falsifying any book, record, or account..

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).

VL.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Rule 13b2-1 promulgated under the
Exchange Act[17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-1] by directly or indirectly, falsifying or causing to be
falsified Revolution’s books, records, and/or accounts subject to Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the
Exchange Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as provided in

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also binds the following who
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receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s
officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or
participation with Defendant or with anyone described in (a).
VIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant shall pay a
civil penalty in the amount of $25,000 to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act. Defendant shall
make this payment within 30 days after entry of this Final Judgment.

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide
detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire mstructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly
from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at

http//www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank

cashier’s check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to

Enterprise Services Center

Accounts Receivable Branch

6500 South MacArthur Boulevard

Oklahoma City, OK 73169
and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of
this Court; Daniel O’Neal as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is made
pursuant to this Final Judgment.

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case
identifying information to the Commission’s counsel in this action. By making this payment,

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant
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to this Fmnal Judgment to the United States Treasury. Defendant shall pay post-judgment interest
on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 USC § 1961.
VIIIL.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is
mcorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant
shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein.

IX.

ITISFURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, solely for purposes of
exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §523, the
allegations in the complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for
disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this
Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement
entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal
securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section
523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §523(a)(19).

X.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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XI.
There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice.

Dated: ,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE





